
City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, August 11, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.     (a)    The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain bylaws which, if adopted,
shall amend Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000.

(b)   All persons who believe that their interest in property is affected by the proposed
bylaws shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written
submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws that are the subject of this
hearing.  This Hearing is open to the public and all representations to Council form
part of the public record.  A live audio feed may be broadcast and recorded by
Castanet.

(c)   All information, correspondence, petitions or reports that have been received
concerning the subject bylaws have been made available to the public.  The
correspondence and petitions received after July 28, 2015 (date of notification) are
available for inspection during the course of this hearing and are located on the
information table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)   Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled to take place during the
Regular Council meeting after the conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted,
however, that for some items a final decision may not be able to be reached tonight.

(e)   It must be emphasized that Council will not receive any representation from the
applicant or members of the public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the Hearing was publicized.

1



3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 BL11114 (TA15-0006), Proposed Text Amendment to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 -
City of Kelowna

4 - 7

To consider Zoning Bylaw amendments to create C3rls - Community
Commercial (Retail Liquor Sales) and C3lp - Community Commercial (Liquor
Primary) as designations within the C3-Community Commercial zone.

3.2 561 McKay Avenue, BL11120 (OCP15-0009) & BL11121 (Z15-0026) - City of
Kelowna

8 - 22

To amend the Official Community Plan to change the future land use
designation of, and rezone, the subject property to facilitate the development
of non-accessory parking.

3.3 310 Mugford Road, BL11122 (Z15-0017) - Harjinder, Jaswinder & Swaran Malhi 23 - 32

To rezone the subject property to allow a subdivision into two (2) lots.

3.4 140 Mugford Road, 405 & 425 Rutland Road, BL11123 (Z15-0010) - RA Quality
Homes Ltd.

33 - 44

To rezone the subject properties to allow for the development of townhouses.

3.5 2124 Pandosy Street, BL11124 (HRA15-0001) - F. DeVilliers Medical Prof. Corp.
et al

45 - 123

To consider a Heritage Revitalization Agreement application to permit
additional uses and two new units on the subject property.

4. Termination

5. Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a)     Brief description of the application by City Staff (Land Use Management);

(b)     The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate all information,
correspondence, petitions or reports received for the record.

(c)     The applicant is requested to make representation to Council regarding the
project and is encouraged to limit their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d)     The Chair will call for representation from the public in attendance as follows:

    (i)     The microphone at the public podium has been provided for any person(s)
wishing to make representation at the Hearing.

     (ii)     The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the podium.

     (iii)     Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks to 5 minutes, however, if

2



they have additional information they may address Council again after all other
members of the public have been heard a first time.

(e)     Once the public has had an opportunity to comment, the applicant is given an
opportunity to respond to any questions raised.  The applicant is requested to keep
the response to a total of 10 minutes maximum.

(f)     Questions by staff by members of Council must be asked before the Public
Hearing is closed and not during debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless
for clarification.

(g)     Final calls for respresentation (ask three times).  Unless Council directs that the
Public Hearing on the bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to the
gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note:  Any applicant or member of the public may use visual aids (e.g. photographs,
sketches, slideshows, etc.) to assist in their presentation or questions.  The computer
and ELMO document camera at the public podium are available.  Please ask staff for
assistance prior to your item if required.

3



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 27,  2015 

RIM No. 1250-04 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: TA15-0006 

Applicant: City of Kelowna 

Subject: 

Proposed Text Amendment to Zoning Bylaw 8000 to create C3rls – Community 
Commercial (Retail Liquor Sales) and C3lp – Community Commercial (Liquor 
Primary) to be stand alone designations within the C3 – Community Commercial 
zone.  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment No. TA15-0006 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by amending designations to the C3 – Community Commercial zone, by adding C3rls – 
Community Commercial (Retail Liquor Sales) and C3lp – Community Commercial (Liquor Primary) 
as outlined in Schedule “A” of the report from the Urban Planning Department dated June 26, 
2015, be considered by Council.  

AND THAT the Text Amendment Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration.  

2.0 Purpose  

To consider Zoning Bylaw amendments to create C3rls - Community Commercial (Retail Liquor 
Sales) and C3lp - Community Commercial (Liquor Primary) as designations within the C3-
Community Commercial zone. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

The proposed bylaw amendments are intended to create specific designations for Retail Liquor 
Sales and Liquor Primary uses within the C3 zone. The amendments will create a zone 
designation for the Retail Liquor Sales (C3rls) and Liquor Primary (C3lp) in order for a zone 
amendment to permit one or the other.   

Currently the C3 zone has the potential to allow a use that is not up for consideration during a 
rezoning application. The only designation to the C3 – Community Commercial zone is C3lp/rls – 
Community Commercial (Liquor Primary/Liquor Retail Sales). This means the only option to allow  
retail liquor sales automatically permits liquor primary and vise versa. The intent of the proposed 
amendment is to eliminate permitting a use that is not intended for a subject property. 

  

4



TA15-0006 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

The proposed amendments speak to uses that are currently permitted in the C3 zone as Liquor 
Primary establishment, major and Retail Liquor Sales are permitted principal uses in the C3 zone. 
When a zone amending application is brought forward to allow either use, the only option for a 
zone amendment is the C3lp/rls designation. The proposed amendment would align the C3 zone 
with existing zones such as C4, and C7 (see attached Schedule “A”).  

The amendment would create two additional designations to the C3 – Community Commercial 
zone;  

 C3rls – Community Commercial (Retail Liquor Sales 

 C3lp –  Community Commercial (Liquor Primary) 

With the proposed amendment City Staff and Council would have the opportunity to approve a 
zone amendment that only permits on use, excluding the other if necessary.   

5.0 Internal Circulation 

The proposed text amendment was circulated to the following departments for comment, no 
concerns were noted: 

Building & Permitting 
Bylaw Services 
Development Engineering Branch 
Policy & Planning  
RCMP 
Real Estate & Building Services Manager 
Information Services 

6.0 Existing Policy 

The C3 zone currently permits principal uses of Liquor Primary and Retail Liquor Sales. An 
amendment to allow either use automatically permits the other.   

7.0 Considerations not applicable to this report 

Financial/Budgetary Considerations 
Personnel Implications 
Alternate Recommendation 
Communications 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements 
External Agency/Public Comments 

 

Submitted by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 
 

Approved for inclusion: Ryan Smith,  
Community Planning Department Manager

5



SCHEDULE “A” 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT 

June 26, 2015 

 

 

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Section Existing Text Proposed Text 

Commercial Zones 
Section 14.3 

C3            
C3lp/rls    

– Community Commercial 
– Community Commercial (Liquor 

Primary/Retail Liquor Sales) 

C3          – Community Commercial  
C3rls      – Community Commercial (Retail Liquor Sales) 
C3lp       – Community Commercial (Liquor Primary) 
C3lp/rls  - Community Commercial (Liquor   

Primary/Retail Liquor Sales) 

Commercial Zones 
Section 14.3.2 (q) 

liquor primary establishment, major (C3lp/rls only) liquor primary establishment, major (C3 lp and C3lp/rls 
only) 

Commercial Zones 
Section 14.3.2(aa) 

retail liquor sales establishment (C3lp/rls only) retail liquor sales establishment (C3rls and C3lp/rls only) 

Information provided below for context 

Commercial Zones 
Section 14.4 

 

 

C4            
C4rls        
C4lp         
C4lp/rls    

– Urban Centre Commercial 
– Urban Centre Commercial (Retail  Liquor Sales) 
– Urban Centre Commercial (Liquor  Primary) 
– Urban Centre Commercial (Liquor Primary/Retail Liquor Sales) 

Commercial Zones 
Section 14.7 

C7             
C7rls         
C7lp         
C7lp/rls    

– Central Business Commercial 
– Central Business Commercial (Retail  Liquor Sales) 
– Central Business Commercial (Liquor  Primary) 
– Central Business Commercial (Liquor Primary/Retail Liquor Sales) 

6



7



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 27, 2015  

RIM No. 1250-20 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: OCP15-0009 & Z15-0026 Owner: City of Kelowna 

Address: 561 McKay Avenue Applicant: City of Kelowna 

Subject: Official Community Plan Amendment & Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: 
MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 
MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / Commercial) 

Proposed OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / Commercial) 

Existing Zone: 
RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing  
C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 

Proposed Zone: C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP15-0009 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of Lot 1 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan EPP45951, located at 561 McKay Avenue, Kelowna, 
BC from the MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) designation to the MXR – Mixed Use 
(Residential / Commercial) as shown on Map “A” attached dated July 2, 2015, be considered by 
Council; 

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z15-0026 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
by changing the zoning classification of Lot 1 District Lot 14 ODYD Plan EPP45951, located at 561 
McKay Avenue, Kelowna, BC from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to the C4 – Urban Centre 
Commercial zone as shown on Map “B” attached dated July 2, 2015, be approved by Council; 

AND THAT the Official Community Plan Amending Bylaw and the Rezoning Bylaw be forwarded to 
a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Official Community Plan Amending Bylaw and the Rezoning Bylaw 
be considered subsequent to the requirements of the Development Engineering Branch completed 
to their satisfaction.  

2.0 Purpose  

To amend the future land use designation of the subject property from MRM - Multiple Unit 
Residential (Medium Density) to MXR - Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial), and to rezone the 

8



OCP15-0009 & Z15-0026 – Page 2 

 
 

subject property from RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing to C4 - Urban Centre Commercial in order to 
accommodate the development of non-accessory parking. 

3.0 Community Planning 

Community Planning Staff supports the Official Community Plan (OCP) amendment and rezoning 
of the subject property as this application to expand an existing non-accessory parking lot meets 
the guiding principles of the South Pandosy Parking Plan approved June 23, 2014 (part of the 
larger Parking Management Strategy). These principles include providing additional long-term 
(longer than 2 hour maximum) off-street parking for employees in the Pandosy Urban Centre, and 
increasing pedestrian connectivity to parking areas. The proposed development will provide a 
total of 79 off-street parking spaces. Pedestrian connectivity is currently being enhanced with 
the construction of a new lane complete with sidewalks on both sides that connects McKay Ave to 
Osprey Avenue. A sidewalk will also be constructed along the road frontage of Osprey Avenue as 
part of this proposed development.  

The proposed design put forth by Kelowna Parking protects an existing mature Maple tree on the 
north end of the property. Internal City departments worked together to design a site plan that 
maintains the integrity of the root system of the valuable tree while maximizing parking needs. 
The result is a substantial landscape buffer to the north, with narrower landscape buffers to the 
south and west side property lines. 

A non-accessory parking lot on this subject property is seen to be a temporary development as 
the City is working towards a balance of alternative transit options that will reduce the reliance 
on vehicles. In the future the City would like to see development of multiple family residential 
with increased transit options in the Pandosy Urban Centre. In the meantime, this temporary 
parking area will help encourage use of Osprey Park & local businesses. As Kelowna moves 
forward with increased residential density and alternative transportation infrastructure (such as 
increased bus routes/stops), pedestrian connectivity and bicycle paths the need for employee 
parking in the area will decrease.  

A long range goal of creating 1,200 medium density residential units by 2030 has proven to be an 
unachievable target as this density has developed at a current rate of 34 units per five year 
period. These units are directly related to parking because the units would decrease the need for 
transit as individuals could live in the area they work, encouraging a live/work/play ideal. As this 
urban centre evolves, this subject parking lot may be developed as per the C4 zone which the 
City sees as an achievable zone to further increase mixed-use in the area. Within the C4 zone, 
incentives exist to encourage residential units to further the City’s goals for gaining residential 
density in this urban centre.  

Though this parking lot is temporary in nature, amending the OCP and Zoning Byalw No. 8000 is 
necessary as it has been determined that the non-accessory parking lot will be in place longer 
than six years, ruling out the possibility of a Temporary Use Permit application.  

Overall the proposed parking lot allows for beautification of the property and use by the 
neighbourhood and employees of the urban centre, as well as act as a revenue generator until 
such time that future development happens on site.   

9



OCP15-0009 & Z15-0026 – Page 3 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

Currently a non-accessory parking lot exists adjacent to Osprey Avenue and Osprey Park with a 
total of 43 stalls. The asphalt surface of the parking lot extends to the back of curb along Osprey 
Avenue creating a hard surface feel along the frontage. There is no sidewalk along the north side 
of Osprey Avenue on this subject block.  

 

 

The City of Kelowna purchased 561 McKay Avenue, the parcel immediately to the north in 
November 2014. The purpose of this sale was two-fold: to connect McKay Avenue to Osprey 
Avenue with the construction of a lane, and to increase off-street parking stalls as part of the 
South Pandosy Parking Plan. Two single family homes built in the 1940’s have been removed, and 
two trees remain on-site.  

The asphalt surface for the current parking lot extends off of the subject property into Osprey 
Park to the east by approximately 5.0 m. The proposed design of the new parking lot layout 
extends the encroachment north. This OCP amendment and rezoning application applies only to 
the subject property as shown on Map “A”. Any future development on the subject property will 
respect the current property lines.  

  

10



OCP15-0009 & Z15-0026 – Page 4 

 
 

4.2 Project Description 

The proposed development will dedicate 1.6 m of frontage along Osprey Avenue to accommodate 
a 1.5 m wide sidewalk. A single vehicle access off of the new lane leads to 79 parking stalls. The 
layout of the hard surface parking lot retains an existing Maple tree, one of the two mature trees 
currently on site. It was through preliminary layout that internal Staff determined that the 
coniferous tree could not be retained if a goal to increase parking stalls was to be met. Designed 
around the mature Maple tree, the parking lot is situated on the south end the subject property 
to allow a larger buffer to the north where the Maple tree exists. Properties along the north side 
of this subject block require a 1.6 m dedication for a future City sidewalk. This dedication 
further restricts the buildable space on the property.  

Kelowna’s OCP guidelines regulate that 19 shade trees should be utilized on a site with 79 
parking stalls (1 per 4 stalls). 15 new trees with the retention of one valuable mature tree is 
being proposed. This ratio is seen as an acceptable compromise to retain the mature Maple tree 
on site. A 1.6 m wide landscape island provides space for shade trees and plant material in the 
centre of the property.   

The South Pandosy Parking Plan and OCP look to reduce car ownership and reduce vehicle trips. 
Kelowna Parking has a lease agreement with OGO Car Share Co-op Kelowna for one parking space 
and will continue with the agreement. Currently OGO Car Share has 160 members in Kelowna 
that utilize six vehicles parked throughout the City.   

It should be noted that the water and sewer are not being upgraded at this time as the 
development of a parking lot does not trigger such upgrades. Future development that may meet 
the C4 zone would potentially trigger water and sewer upgrades.  

In keeping with the desire to increase transit in all forms in this urban centre, sidewalks are 
being installed along Osprey Avenue and the new lane, increasing open views down the new lane 
on this block.  

A non-accessory parking use in the Pandosy Urban Centre requires a 3.0 m, Level II landscape 
buffer. The City of Kelowna is seeking a variance to the front and side yard setbacks from the 
minimum 3.0 m width landscape buffer to the following; a front yard setback of 0.7 m, a side 
yard setback (west) of 0.9m and side yard setback (east) of 0.0m. The proposed front yard buffer 
of 0.7 m between the back of City sidewalk and back of curb on site will be planted with dense 
perennials and shrubs.  As this is a narrow space for plant material to thrive, curb stops will be 
placed along the adjacent parking spaces to ensure vehicle overhang does not impede 
vegetation. The side yard setback to the west proposed at 0.9 m will be treated with a crushed 
aggregate.   

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Osprey Avenue between Pandosy Street and 
Richter Street and extends north to McKay Avenue in the South Pandosy sector of Kelowna. The 
property is currently zoned RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing, identified in Kelowna’s OCP as MRM, and 
is within the Permanent Growth Boundary.  

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C4 – Urban Centre Commercial Commercial Office Building 

East P3 – Parks and Open Space Osprey Park  

South C4 – Urban Centre Commercial Commercial Office Building 

West 
RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing 
C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 

Vacant Lot 
Commercial Retail Building 

11



OCP15-0009 & Z15-0026 – Page 5 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 561 McKay Ave 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

This table identifies variances that will be applied for during the Development Permit application 
stage of this development should this OCP and Rezoning application receive approval.  

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C4 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot / Subdivision Regulations 
Minimum Lot Area 460 m2 2,161.9 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 13.0 m 33.9 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30.0 m 63.3 m 

Development Regulations 
Maximum Height m n/a 

Minimum Front Yard Level 2 Buffer (min 3.0 m width)  0.7 m  

Minimum Side Yard (west) Level 2 Buffer (min 3.0 m width) 0.9 m  

Minimum Side Yard (east) Level 2 Buffer (min 3.0 m width) 
existing  

-0.0 m (extends into 
neighbouring park)  

Minimum Rear Yard Level 2 Buffer (min 3.0 m width) 3.1 m 

Maximum Site Coverage 75%  n/a 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements n/a 79 

Minimum Bicycle Parking n/a 0  

 

Required Shade Trees 
1 per 4 parking stalls 
79 stalls = 19 shade trees 

15 shade trees + retention of 1 
high value existing mature 
Maple tree  

 Indicates a requested variance to Front Yard Landscape Buffer 

 Indicates a requested variance to Side Yard Setback (west) 

 Indicates a requested variance to Side Yard Setback (east) 

12



OCP15-0009 & Z15-0026 – Page 6 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 South Pandosy Parking Plan 

Improve Pedestrian Access to and From New Parking Lots.1  

There will be a need to improve pedestrian routes to ensure safe, efficient, and attractive 
pedestrian connections from the parking lots to Pandosy Street. 

Guiding Principals 2  

Focus on excellent short-term parking management to support higher turnover while maintaining 
a governing role in long-term parking solutions. 

The parking system will continue to pay for itself (will operate under a user-pay cost recovery 
model) The South Pandosy Neighbourhood Strategy shall locate pay parking stations and set 
parking rates for on-street parking in the core commercial and employment areas, as well as in 
public off-street lots; as to support the costs of operations and maintenance. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Building Permit required for the paved parking lot and irrigation system 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached Memorandum dated June 29, 2015 

6.3 FortisBC Inc Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities along McKay and Osprey Avenues, and within the 
lane to the west of the subject property. The applicant is responsible for costs associated 
with any change to the subject property's existing service, if any, as well as the provision 
of appropriate land rights where required. 

6.4 IPLAN-Parks & Public Places 

 Proposed parking lot includes one row of 20 parking stalls on parkland east of the subject 
property. These stalls are considered to be temporary in nature and the parkland on 
which they are proposed must not be considered as part of this re-zoning and OCP 
amendment application. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  May 25, 2015 
Date Public Consultation Completed: July 14, 2015  
 
 
  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna South Pandosy Neighbourhood Parking Strategy, 3.1  (Reducing Demand). 
2 City of Kelowna South Pandosy Neighbourhood Parking Strategy, 3.3  (Guiding Principle). 

13



OCP15-0009 & Z15-0026 – Page 7 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
OCP Amending Map “A” 
Zone Amending Map “B” 
Proposed Site Plan 
Proposed Landscape Plan 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 13, 2015 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LG) 

Application: Z15-0017 Owners: 
Harjinder Kaur Malhi 
Jaswinder Singh Malhi 
Swaran Singh Malhi 

Address: 310 Mugford Road Applicant: Jaswinder Singh Malhi 

Subject: Rezoning Application 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning application No. Z15-0017 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot B Section 26 Township 26 ODYD Plan 27494 located at 
310 Mugford Road, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU2 - Medium Lot 
Housing zone NOT be considered by Council. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a staff recommendation NOT to rezone the subject parcel to allow a subdivision into 
two lots. 

3.0 Community Planning 

Community Planning Staff does not support the proposed rezoning application. The purpose of 
this rezoning application is to allow the subject parcel to be subdivided into two lots. The lot is 
not wide enough to be split into two under the current RU1 zone rules, therefore the applicant is 
proposing to rezone to RU2. 

The proposed lot widths are 12.95m where the minimum required in RU2 is 13.00m. These 
measurements only meet the subdivision requirements of the RU3 – Small Lot Housing zone; 
however RU3 lots require rear lanes and there is no rear lane adjacent to this parcel. As a result, 
the applicant is seeking RU2 zoning with variances to lot width, (or otherwise seeking RU3 zoning 
without the requirement for rear lane access). 

 

23



Z15-0017 – Page 2 

 
 

 

Required Minimum Lot Width 

RU1 16.5m 

RU2 13.0m 

RU3 8.5m 

Proposed Subdivided Lots 

RU2 12.95m (variance of -0.05m) 

or 

RU3 variance to lane requirement 

 

Rezoning to either RU2 or RU3 will require variances to the Zoning Bylaw. As such, the subject 
property is not large enough, or sited properly, to subdivide to the current subdivision standards 
in Kelowna. 

Community Planning is in favour of redevelopment that increases residential densities in and 
around Kelowna’s Urban Centres; however, the Department cannot support development that is 
contrary to the OCP’s urban design guidelines and sacrifices general design principles. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

On October 27, 2014, City Council adopted amendments to the RU3 zone that requires new RU3 
lots to have rear lane access. The purpose of this amendment was to recognize that proposals for 
residential development without rear lane access in this zone resulted in front driveways that 
were nearly as wide as the minimum lot width (8.50m). The approved text amendment also 
upholds the Official Community Plan urban design guidelines for pedestrian access and 
streetscapes. 

4.2 Project Description 

The proponent made an application to rezone the subject parcel from the RU1 – Large Lot 
Housing zone to the RU2 – Medium Lot Housing zone to facilitate a two-lot subdivision. The 
application is accompanied by a Development Variance Permit to vary the required lot width in 
the RU2 zone, as well as a subdivision application to finalize the process. 

No future buildings plans were included with the application. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Mugford Road, between Rutland Road and 
Laurel Road. The site is located within the Rutland Sector and is within the Revitalization 
Development Permit Area. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 

 

24



Z15-0017 – Page 3 

 
 

 
Subject Property Map: 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU2 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Min. Lot Area 400m2 per lot 442.01m2 per lot 

Min. Lot Width 13.0m per lot 12.95m per lot  

Min. Lot Depth 30.0m per lot 34.14m per lot 

Development Regulations 
Max. Building Coverage 40% unknown 

Max. Height 9.5m unknown 

Min. Front Yard 4.5m unknown 

Min. Side Yard (west) 1.5-1.8m unknown 

Min. Side Yard (east) 1.5-1.8m unknown 

Min. Rear Yard 6.0-7.5m unknown 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 2 stalls unknown 

Private Open Space 35m2 unknown 

 Indicates a requested variance to lot width. 

Private road within the multi- 
residential development does not 
allow access to subject site. 

25



Z15-0017 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Chapter 14 – Urban Design DP Guidelines 

1 Prioritize the safe and convenient movement of pedestrians above all other modes of 
transportation. 

2 Avoid large expanses of parking. 

3 Ensure vehicular and service access has minimal impact on the streetscape. 

4 Avoid vehicle access from arterial and collector roads and from those roads with a prominent 
streetscape. 

5 Minimize the width and area of driveways and impervious surfaces. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comments. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached memorandum dated May 4, 2015. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received:  March 19, 2015 

8.0 Alternate Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning application No. Z15-0017 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot B Section 26 Township 26 ODYD Plan 27494 located at 
310 Mugford Road, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU2 - Medium Lot 
Housing zone be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Rezoning Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaw be considered subsequent to the requirements of 
the Development Engineering Department being completed to their satisfaction. 

AND THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaw be considered in conjunction with Council’s 
consideration of a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit for the subject 
property; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
issuance of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer. 

 

 

 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 8.1 (Chapter 14 – Comprehensive Development Permit Area). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 8.9 (Chapter 14 – Comprehensive Development Permit Area). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 8.10 (Chapter 14 – Comprehensive Development Permit Area). 
4 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 8.12 (Chapter 14 – Comprehensive Development Permit Area). 
5 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 1.7 (Chapter 14 – Intensive Residential - Character Neighbourhood). 

26



Z15-0017 – Page 5 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Lindsey Ganczar 
Planning Supervisor 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Development Engineering Memorandum 

27



28



29



30



31



32



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 27, 2015 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: Z15-0010 Owner: RA Quality Homes Ltd. 

Address: 

140 Mugford Rd 

405 Rutland Rd  

425 Rutland Rd 

Applicant: Tony Kuhnkuhn 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM2 – Low Density Row Housing  
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z15-0010 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot A Section 26 Township 26 ODYD Plan 4378, located at 
140 Mugford Rd, Kelowna, BC from RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to RM2 – Low Density Row 
Housing zone and by changing the zoning classification of Lot 3 Section 26 Township 26 ODYD Plan 
3513, located at 405 Rutland Rd, Kelowna, BC and Lot 4 Section 26 Township 26 ODYD Plan 3513, 
located at 425 Rutland Rd, Kelowna, BC from RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to RM3 – Low Density 
Multiple Housing zone be considered by Council, 

AND THAT the Rezoning Bylaws be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration, 

AND THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaws be considered in conjunction with Council’s 
consideration of a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit for the subject 
property, 

AND THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaws be considered subsequent to the requirements 
of the Development Engineering Department being completed to their satisfaction, 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaws be considered subsequent to approval 
of the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure. 

  

33



Z15-0010 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose  

To rezone the subject properties to allow for the development of townhouses. 

3.0 Community Planning  

Urban Planning Staff supports the proposal to rezone the subject parcels in order to allow for a 
12-unit townhouse development. The Future Land Use of the parcels is MRL – Multiple Unit 
Residential (Low Density), therefore the application to rezone the parcels is in compliance with 
the Official Community Plan. The project meets many objectives of the Revitalization 
Development Permit Area. The architectural design of the buildings fit within the neighbourhood 
context and will improve the Rutland Road streetscape.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The applicant is proposing a 12-unit townhouse development on the three subject properties. The 
two parcels along Rutland Road have been vacant for an 
extended period of time. The parcel fronting on Mugford 
Road has an existing single family dwelling which will 
remain as part of the development. 

The proposed development will require the use of the rear 
lane, which is accessed from Mugford Road and connects to 
Rutland Road. To date, the lane has been dedicated, but 
has not been constructed. Currently there is an accessory 
building within the laneway at the rear of 375 Rutland 
Road. In 1963, the Department of Highways issued a 
License of Occupation to the original owner which allowed 
the accessory building to remain until such time that the 
use of the lane was deemed necessary. On August 10, 2010, 
The City of Kelowna Real Estate & Building Services 
Department issued a letter to the current owners which 
included a Building Location Certificate. The letter 
indicates the laneway encroachment (accessory building) 
may remain until it is deemed necessary to remove it.  

The proposed development will require the use of the rear 
lane for primary access to on-site parking and for emergency vehicle access. Community Planning 
and Real Estate Services staff have been working with both the applicant and the property owner 
of 375 Rutland Road to come to an amicable resolution for the removal of the encroaching 
structure. 

4.2 Project Description 

The east parcel, 140 Mugford Road, contains an existing  single family dwelling which will 
remain. Located to the north of the existing house will be two semi-detached dwellings with 
single car garages accessed from the lane. Driveways provide an additional parking space 
required for each unit. Two visitor parking stalls are located north of the existing dwelling. 

The two parcels, 405 and 425 Rutland Road, will contain two 4-unit rowhouses. Site access will 
be from the laneway to a shared private road which the rowhouses face onto. All buildings are 
two storey, ground oriented with attached single car garages. Eight additional parking stalls are 

Accessory 

building 

in lane. 

Subject Properties 

34



Z15-0010 – Page 3 

 
 

provided on the west side of the lane to meet the Zoning Bylaw requirement for parking. The 
initial development design does not require any Zoning Bylaw variances. 

The development contains numerous trees for both shade and privacy. Each unit provides green 
space in both the front and rear yards. Pedestrian access is provided between units with a 
primary access provided at Rutland Road. The siting of the building includes ground oriented 
housing units, site access from the lane and a pedestrian friendly streetscape with pedestrian 
linkages. 

The development will be unique because parcels which are separated by a lane are required to 
have separate stratas. Utilities cannot cross a public lane. The Mugord Road property will be a 
five unit strata and the Rutland Road parcels will be an 8-unit strata. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject properties are locatied in the Rutland Urban Centre. The parcels have a Future Land 
Use designation of MRL – Multiple Residential (Low Density) in the Official Community Plan and 
the properties are located within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Multiple Dwelling Housing 

East RU1 – Large Lot housing Single Detached Dwelling 

South 
RU1 – Large Lot housing 
P2 – Education and Minor Institutional 

Single Detached Dwelling 
Religious Assembly (vacant & unused) 

West RU1 – Large Lot housing Single Detached Dwelling 

 

Subject Property Map:  

 
  

35



Z15-0010 – Page 4 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Tables 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM2 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Min. Lot Area 1000m2 1634m2 

Min. Lot Width 30m 18.28m* 

Min. Lot Depth 30m 89.40m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.80 (with bonusing) .53 

Max. Site Coverage  
(Buildings only) 

50% 33% 

Max. Site Coverage (Buildings, 
Driveways & Parking) 

55% 51% 

Height Lessor of 9.5m or 2 ½ storeys 8.0m / 2 storeys 

Min. Front Yard (south) 4.5m 7.5m 

Min. Side Yard (east) 4.0m 4.5m 

Min. Side Yard (west) 
4.0m to dwelling 
6.0m to garage 

4.5m 
7.5m 

Min. Rear Yard (north) 6.0m 7.5m 

Other Regulations 
Min. Parking Requirements** 10 stalls 12 stalls (2 visitor stalls) 

Min. Private Open Space 25m² / dwelling 50m2 

Min. Distance Between Buildings 3m 7.5m 

*  Existing non-conforming parcel width 

**Includes parking stalls required for the existing single detached dwelling 

 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Min. Lot Area 900m2 1672m2 

Min. Lot Width 30m 45.72m 

Min. Lot Depth 30m 36.58m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.85 (with bonusing) .59 

Max. Site Coverage  
(Buildings only) 

40% 34% 

Max. Site Coverage 
(Buildings, Driveways & Parking) 

60% 55% 

Height Lessor of 10m or 3 storeys 8.0m / 2 storeys 

Min. Front Yard (west) 4.5m 4.5m 

Min. Side Yard (north) 1.2m 4.5m 

Min. Side Yard (south) 4.0m 4.5m 

Min. Rear Yard (east) 3.0m 7.7m 

Other Regulations 
Min. Parking Requirements 16 stalls 16 stalls 

Min. Private Open Space 25m² / dwelling 26m2 

 

36



Z15-0010 – Page 5 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in 
particular and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 
4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas 
to be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building 
design, height, and siting. 

Relevant Development Permit Guidelines 

Ch14 / S1.6 - Provide generous outdoor spaces, including rooftops, balconies, patios and 
courtyards, to allow residents to benefit from the favourable Okanagan weather; 

 
Ch.14 / S2.3 - Design new multi-storey buildings to transition in height where the OCP land 
use designation provides for smaller structures on adjoining lots; 

 
Ch.14 / S.3.2 - Develop visual and physical connections between the public street and private 
buildings (e.g. patios and spill-out activity, views to and from active interior spaces, awnings 
and canopies); 

 
Ch.14 / S.4.2 - Ensure developments are sensitive to and compatible with the massing of the 
established and/or future streetscape; 

 
Ch.14 / S.5.1 - Design for human scale and visual interest in all building elevations. This can 
be achieved principally by giving emphasis to doors and windows and other signs of human 
habitation relative to walls and building structure; 

 
Ch.14 / S.6.4 – Use materials in combination to create contrast, enhance human scale, and 
reduce the apparent bulk of the building; 
 
Ch.14 / S.8.8 - Locate parking areas to the rear of buildings, internal to the building, or 
below grade; 

 
Ch.14 / S.8.12 - Avoid vehicle access from arterial and collector roads and from those roads 
with a prominent streetscape; 

 
Ch.14 / S.8.12 - Incorporate decks, balconies and common outdoor amenity spaces into 
developments; 

  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

37



Z15-0010 – Page 6 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Demolition permits are required for any existing structures 

2) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 

Building Permit(s)  

3) A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage at 

time of building permit application. 

4) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 

applications. 

5) Please indicate how the requirements of Radon mitigation and NAFS are being applied to 

this structure 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Refer to attached Memorandum dated May 25, 2015 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  March 11, 2015  
Date Amended Plans Received  June 16, 2015 
Date Public Consultation Completed: June 22, 2015  

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Planning Supervisor 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 

Site Plan/ Landscape Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Development Engineering Memorandum 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 27, 2015 

RIM No. 1240-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: HRA15-0001 Owner: 

F. DeVilliers Medical Prof. 
Corp. 
F. De Villiers Medical Prof. 
Corp., Inc. No. 101092982 
Grant Wayne Good 
Janette Armstrong 
Marie Hillevi McAlpine 

Address: 2124 Pandosy Street Applicant: 
Christy & Associates Planning 
Consultants Ltd. 

Subject: Heritage Revitalization Agreement Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council consider a bylaw which would authorize the City of Kelowna to enter into a 
Heritage Revitalization Agreement for the properties legally known as Strata Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 
5, District Lot 14, ODYD, Strata Plan KAS3144, located at 2124 Pandosy Street, Kelowna, BC in 
the form attached as Schedule “A” to the Report from the Community Planning Department 
dated July 13, 2015; 

AND THAT the Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization Bylaw be forwarded to a Public 
Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT the Heritage Revitalization Agreement be signed by the Owners prior to Public 
Hearing; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization Bylaw be 
considered subsequent to the requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being 
completed to their satisfaction; 

AND FURTHER THAT, upon adoption of the Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization 
Bylaw, Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization Bylaw No. 9184 – HRA03-0003 – 2124 
Pandosy Street, and all amendments thereto, be repealed. 

  

45



HRA15-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Heritage Revitalization Agreement application to permit additional uses and two 
new units on the subject property. 

3.0 Community Planning  

Community Planning Staff supports the proposed Heritage Revitalization Agreement (HRA) to 
permit additional uses and create two new units on the subject property, known as Cadder 
House. This is a prominent property within the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area and is 
currently the subject of an HRA that allows a total of five residential dwelling units within the 
main house and a carriage house. Staff supports some flexibility in the permitted uses for Cadder 
House provided its residential character is maintained and the ongoing protection of this heritage 
property is ensured. The proposed HRA can be found in Attachment B: Draft HRA15-0001. 

Staff worked with the applicant to refine the proposed list of uses to those that allow some 
commercial use of the property while maintaining its residential character and minimizing 
potential impacts on the surrounding residential neighbourhood. Several proposed uses were 
eliminated or modified through the application process, including health services, artisan live / 
work studios and a heritage restaurant. The HRA includes a specific definition for each use, based 
on the definitions in Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 and modified, where appropriate, for the site 
context.  

The proposed principal uses are: 

 Apartment, Short Term Rental 

 Apartment Housing 

 Congregate Housing 

 Group Home, Minor 

 Supportive Housing 

The proposed secondary uses are: 

 Agriculture, Urban 

 Carriage House 

 Child Care, Minor 

 Home Based Business, Major 

 Home Based Business, Minor 

 Offices 

 Wellness Studio  

The original application proposed new commercial and residential uses to be permitted within 
the five existing strata units. The intent is for Cadder House to remain predominantly residential 
in use to preserve its character and reduce the potential impacts of commercial uses in a 
residential neighbourhood. With the request to increase the number of units partway through the 
application process, the applicant proposed increasing the number of units available for 
commercial uses from two to three. Staff’s recommendation is to limit the number of units used 
for commercial purposes, or secondary uses, to two of the total seven units. The applicant’s 
objective to address the financial demands of maintaining a heritage property is met through the 
creation of two new units and the provision for some commercial uses on the subject property.  

Rentals in residential zones require a minimum one month tenancy as per Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, 
and rentals with a shorter tenancy are considered a commercial use. The HRA proposes a site-
specific definition that would see short-term rentals with no minimum tenancy as a residential 

46



HRA15-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

use for Cadder House. Given the site context and additional control through the strata, Staff is 
confident that the strata can address any potential concerns that may accompany short-term 
rentals in this residential area.  

A total of 14 on-site parking spaces are provided for both the residential and commercial uses on 
the property based on the regulations established in Zoning Bylaw No. 8000. If all seven units are 
used for residential purposes, 10 parking spaces are required, including one visitor parking space. 
If five units are used for residential purposes and two for commercial, 12 parking spaces are 
required. This assumes a maximum commercial space of 197 m2 and required parking of 2.5 
spaces per 100 m2 of gross floor area, consistent with the Zoning Bylaw requirement for offices. 

Neighbourhood Consultation 

As part of the application process, the strata owners conducted extensive neighbourhood 
consultation. A survey was distributed to properties in the surrounding area requesting feedback 
regarding the proposed list of uses for Cadder House and some of the strata owners also met face 
to face with area residents. The survey feedback is summarized in Attachment C: Neighbourhood 
Consultation. The feedback generally shows support for additional residential and commercial 
uses, with some concerns about the more intensive commercial uses. Staff and the applicant 
used this input to inform some of the revisions to the proposed uses for Cadder House. 

The strata owners and the applicant also met with representatives from both the Friends and 
Residents of the Abbott Heritage Conservation Area Society (FRAHCAS) and the Kelowna South 
Central Association of Neighbourhoods (KSAN) to discuss the proposed HRA. Following these 
meetings, both organizations submitted written letters outlining their positions. Both groups 
support the ongoing heritage preservation of Cadder House without the addition of commercial 
uses, citing concerns about the impacts on the residential units and the character of the property 
itself. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

Heritage Revitalization Agreements 

An HRA is a mechanism permitted through Section 966 of the Local Government Act wherein the 
owner of a property with heritage value may enter into an agreement with the local municipality 
for the long-term protection of the heritage property. Within an HRA, provisions for uses, siting 
and other regulations may be varied or supplemented from what is permitted in the Zoning Bylaw 
and other permits.  The HRA may also stipulate conditions and timing for other works to be 
completed. 

Owners of property with heritage value 
who are interested in entering into or 
amending an HRA must submit an 
application to the City’s Community 
Planning Department. There are currently 
14 properties with active HRAs in the City 
of Kelowna. Staff conducts site visits every 
two years to ensure these properties are 
operating in accordance with the terms 
and conditions established in the HRA.  

Cadder House Heritage Details 

47



HRA15-0001 – Page 4 

 
 

Cadder House was built in 1908 for Thomas Willing Stirling, a business investor and leader in the 
local tree-fruit industry. Cadder House was used as a nurses’ residence for a few years in the 
1920s before being used as a family residence again for several decades until 1964 when it 
became a seniors’ care facility under the name “Oak Lodge”. It later operated as a psychiatric 
care facility. 

When built, Cadder House was reportedly the largest home in Kelowna and still stands as a 
prominent building in the area. Its Victorian Revival style incorporates some distinctive design 
elements such as the use of local rusticated concrete block for the foundation and ground floor, 
a symmetrical front façade, a cross-gabled design and gabled pedimented dormers. 

Additional details are available in Attachment D: Statement of Significance. 

Existing Heritage Revitalization Agreement 

The original HRA for Cadder House was adopted in 2004 and permitted five residential units on 
the subject property, with four in the principal building and one in a carriage house (see 
Attachment E: HRA03-0003). The HRA outlined several works to be undertaken by the property 
owners, including building restoration, landscaping, servicing and utility upgrades, and structural 
upgrades. Through this application, Cadder House was also designated as a Heritage Property, 
which affords long-term heritage protection for the property. The units were subsequently 
stratified and there are now four owners of the five strata units. 

4.2 Project Description 

The Cadder House strata owners are seeking changes to the existing HRA to allow some flexibility 
in the permitted uses on the property and to create two new units in the existing basement. This 
request is primarily driven by the desire to create revenue sources to meet the financial needs 
and high costs associated with operating and maintaining a large heritage property. The strata 
owners also see this as an opportunity to provide for some accommodation and local commercial 
needs within the broader area of Kelowna General Hospital while maintaining the property’s 
residential form and character. Additional details are provided in the applicant’s original 
submission, Attachment F: Proposal for Adaptive Re-Use. 

During the application process the owner of Strata Lot 1, which consists of the carriage house and 
the basement of the principal building, applied for a Building Permit for structural work in the 
basement. The work consisted of replacing existing posts and beams to increase headroom and 
address concerns that were preventing this area from being used for dwelling space. The work 
was completed on April 9, 2015 and satisfies the Building Code requirements. At this time, the 
request to create two new units in this space was added to the application. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the west side of Pandosy Street between Cadder Avenue and 
Glenwood Avenue in the Central City Sector. It is also within the Abbott Street Heritage 
Conservation Area. The Future Land Use designation for the property is S2RES – Single / Two Unit 
Residential and it is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single dwelling housing 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

48



HRA15-0001 – Page 5 

 
 

 
Subject Property Map: 2124 Pandosy Street 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Heritage Revitalization Agreeements.1 Consider the adaptive re-use of heritage buildings 
appropriate within any future land use designation, provided that a Heritage Revitalization 
Agreement is negotiated with the City and provided that the project meets the criteria 
established for sensitive neighbourhood integration. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Building Permit for basement works completed April 9, 2015. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated February 12, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.7.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

49



HRA15-0001 – Page 6 

 
 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received:  January 15, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: March 18, 2015  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 
 
 

Attachments: 

Attachment A: Subject Property Map 
Attachment B: Draft HRA15-0001 
Attachment C: Neighbourhood Consultation 
Attachment D: Kelowna Heritage Register Statement of Significance 
Attachment E: HRA03-0003 
Attachment F: Proposal for Adaptive Re-Use 
Attachment G: Development Engineering Memorandum 

50



51



SCHEDULE “A” 
HERITAGE REVITALIZATION AGREEMENT 

 
 
 DOCUMENT APPROVAL 

           Document No. HRA15-0001 

Cir Department Date Init. 

 Planning   

 Development 
Engineering 

  

 Building & 
Permitting 

  

 City Clerk   
 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT dated as of the     day of             , 201   . 
 
 
BETWEEN: 
 
 CITY OF KELOWNA, a Municipal Corporation having offices at 

1435 Water Street, Kelowna, British Columbia V1Y 1J4 
 
  (herein called the "CITY") 
 
AND: 
 THE OWNERS OF STRATA LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4 AND 5, KAS3144 
 2124 PANDOSY STREET 
 KELOWNA, BC 
   V1Y 1S6 
 
 
  (herein called the "OWNERS") 
 
 
 
WHEREAS a local government may, by bylaw, enter into a Heritage Revitalization Agreement 
with the Owner of property identified as having heritage value, pursuant to Section 966 of the 
Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Owners own certain real property on which is situated a building of 
heritage value, pursuant to the City’s Heritage Register, which property and building are located 
at 2124 Pandosy Street, Kelowna, British Columbia and legally described as:  
 
 Strata Lot 1, KAS 3144 PID: 026-923-181 
 Strata Lot 2, KAS 3144 PID: 026-923-190 
 Strata Lot 3, KAS 3144 PID: 026-923-203 
 Strata Lot 4, KAS 3144 PID: 026-923-211 
 Strata Lot 5, KAS 3144 PID: 026-923-220 
 And any lots created thereof  
 
 (herein called the "Heritage Lands") 

52



SCHEDULE "A" - Page 2. 
 
 
 
AND WHEREAS the units are located within two (2) buildings on the Heritage Lands, herein 
called the “Heritage Buildings”; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Owners have presented to the City a proposal for the use, development 
and preservation of the Heritage Lands and has voluntarily and without any requirement by the 
City, entered into this agreement pursuant to Section 966 of the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS a local government must hold a Public Hearing on the matter before entering 
into, or amending, a Heritage Revitalization Agreement if the agreement or amendment would 
permit a change to the use or density of use that is not otherwise authorized by the applicable 
zoning of the Heritage Lands and for these purposes Section 890 through 894 of the Local 
Government Act apply; 
 
AND WHEREAS within thirty days after entering into, or amending, a Heritage Revitalization 
Agreement the local government must file a notice in the Land Title Office in accordance with 
Section 976 of the Local Government Act and give notice to the Minister responsible for the 
Heritage Conservation Act in accordance with Section 977 of the Local Government Act; 
 
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this agreement and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1.0 Heritage Revitalization 
 
1.1 The parties agree that the Heritage Lands has heritage value, deserving of protection 

and conservation and the Owner specifically agrees to restore, maintain, preserve and 
protect the heritage character of the buildings located on the Heritage Lands in 
accordance with attached Schedules “AA”, “BB”, and “CC”. 

1.2 The parties agree that the Heritage Lands may, notwithstanding the current zoning on 
the Heritage Lands, be used for the following permitted uses: 

(a) A maximum of seven units as shown in Schedule “AA” provided that: 
 

i. The units will be limited to the following sizes: 

Strata Lot 1: 51.6 m2 
Strata Lot 2: 86.2 m2 
Strata Lot 3: 111 m2 
Strata Lot 4: 75 m2 
Strata Lot 5: 71 m2 
Proposed Strata Lot 1A: 65 m2 
Proposed Strata Lot 1B: 40 m2 

 
ii. The use of the Heritage Lands shall be predominantly residential. A 

maximum of two units may be used for commercial purposes at any given 
time; 

  

53



SCHEDULE "A" - Page 3. 
 
 
 

iii. The principal uses permitted on the Heritage Lands are:  

• Apartment, Short Term Rental 
• Apartment Housing 
• Congregate Housing 
• Group Home, Minor 
• Supportive Housing 

 
iv. The secondary uses permitted on the Heritage Lands are: 

• Agriculture, Urban 
• Carriage House 
• Child Care, Minor 
• Home Based Business, Major 
• Home Based Business, Minor 
• Offices 
• Wellness Studio 

 
v. The hours of operation for all commercial enterprises located on the subject 

property shall be between 8:00 am and 7:00 pm, Monday through Friday; 
and 

vi. Fourteen (14) on-site parking stalls shall be provided, as shown on Schedule 
“AA”. 

(b) No additional units shall be developed without an application to amend this 
agreement.  

 
(c) The owner agrees to maintain the designation of the property under Section 967 

of the Local Government Act as a Heritage Property. 
 
1.3 The parties agree that, except as varied or supplemented by the provisions of this 

Agreement, all bylaws and regulations of the City and all laws of any authority having 
jurisdiction shall apply to the Heritage Lands. 

1.4 Where a Heritage Alteration Permit is required, the discretion to approve, refuse or 
revise such permit is delegated by Council to the Community Planning Department 
Manager. 

2.0 Definitions 
 

The following words, terms, and phrases, wherever they occur in this Agreement, shall 
have the meaning assigned to them as below. For all other definitions and regulations, 
refer to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, as amended. 
 
AGRICULTURE, URBAN means the cultivation of a portion of a parcel for the 
production of food including fruits, vegetables, nuts and herbs for human consumption 
only. This use is limited to production activities which are not deemed to be noxious or 
offensive to adjacent properties or the general public. Activities that produce or emit 
hazards, odour, dust, smoke, noise, effluent, light pollution, glare, or other emission are 
prohibited. This use is limited to a maximum of 25 m2 in area on this property. 
 
APARTMENT, SHORT TERM RENTAL means apartment housing having a principal 
common entrance and cooking facilities and furnishings within each dwelling. There is 
no minimum tenancy period for this use on this property.  

54



SCHEDULE "A" - Page 4. 
 
 
 

APARTMENT HOUSING means any physical arrangement of attached residential units, 
intended to be occupied by separate households. The minimum tenancy period is one 
(1) month.  
 
CARRIAGE HOUSE means a dwelling unit located within a building that is subordinate 
to the principal building on the property. 
 
CHILD CARE, MINOR means an establishment licensed as required under the 
Community Care and Assisted Living Act intended to provide care, educational services, 
and supervision to no more than eight (8) children. 
 
COMMERCIAL USE means the use of a unit on the Heritage Lands as a Child Care, 
Minor; Home Based Business, Major; Offices; or Wellness Studio. 
 
CONGREGATE HOUSING means housing in the form of multiple sleeping units where 
residents are provided with common living facilities, meal preparation, laundry services 
and room cleaning. Congregate housing may also include other services such as 
transportation for routine medical appointments and counselling. 
 
GROUP HOME, MINOR means the use of one or more units as a care facility licensed 
as required under the Community Care and Assisted Living Act to provide room and 
board for not more than a total of six (6) residents with physical, mental, social, or 
behavioural problems that require professional care, guidance and supervision.  A group 
home, minor may include, to a maximum of four (4), any combination of staff and 
residents not requiring care. The character of the use is that the occupants live together 
as a single housekeeping group and use a common kitchen.  
 
HOME BASED BUSINESS, MAJOR means development consisting of the use of a 
dwelling unit for a business by a resident who resides for more than 240 days of a year 
at that unit. The business must be secondary to the residential use of the unit and shall 
not change the residential character of the principal building. 
 
HOME BASED BUSINESS, MINOR means development consisting of the use of a 
dwelling unit for a business by a resident who resides for more than 240 days of a year 
at that unit. The business must be secondary to the residential use of the unit and shall 
not change the residential character of the principal building. 
 
OFFICES means development primarily for the provision of professional, management, 
administrative, consulting, medical or financial services in an office setting.  Office uses 
are limited to those that operate by appointment only. 
 
PRINCIPAL USE means the main or primary use of the Heritage Lands that is provided 
for in the list of permitted uses in this Heritage Revitalization Agreement.  
 
SECONDARY USE means the use of the Heritage Lands that must be in conjunction 
with a principal use and is provided for in the list of permitted uses in this Heritage 
Revitalization Agreement. 
 

55



SCHEDULE "A" - Page 5. 
 
 
 

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING means housing consisting of dwellings with support services 
on-site that may or may not include collective dining facilities, laundry facilities, 
counselling, educational services, homemaking and transportation. 
 
WELLNESS STUDIO means development for wellness counselling on a one-to-one 
basis or in a group setting to a maximum of ten (10) individuals. This use may include, 
but is not limited to, a physical fitness, yoga, pilates or weight loss studio and may 
include standard ancillary facilities. 

  
3.0 Proposed Development 
  
3.1 The Owners agree not to alter the exterior of the Heritage Buildings except pursuant to a 

Heritage Alteration Permit issued by the City and in accordance with this Agreement. 

3.2 The Owners agree to maintain the exterior of the Heritage Buildings on the Heritage 
Lands in general accordance with the design attached hereto as Schedule “BB” and 
forming part of this Agreement. 

3.3 The Owners agree to undertake and maintain landscaping on the subject property in 
general accordance with the landscape plans attached hereto as Schedule “CC” and 
forming part of this agreement.  

3.4 The Owners agree to provide and pay for all servicing required by the proposed 
development of the Heritage Lands and to provide required bonding for same, including, 
but not limited to: domestic water and fire protection, sanitary sewer, storm drainage, 
road improvements, road dedications and statutory rights-of-way for utility servicing, 
power and telecommunication services and street lighting. 

4.0 Development Engineering Requirements 
 
4.1 The Owners agree that any development on the Heritage Lands must meet the 

requirements of Subdivision, Development and Servicing Bylaw No. 7900, as amended. 

5.0 Building & Permitting Requirements 
 
5.1 The Owners agree that any development on the Heritage Lands must meet the 

requirements of the British Columbia Building Code of the day. 

6.0 Damage or Destruction 
 
6.1 In the event that the Heritage Building is damaged, the parties agree as follows: 

(a) The Owners may repair the Heritage Building in which event the Owners shall 
forthwith commence the repair work and complete same within one year of the 
date of damage; 

 
 OR, in the event that the Heritage Building is destroyed,  

 
(b) The City will, by bylaw and after conducting a Public Hearing in the manner 

prescribed by Sections 890 through 894 of the Local Government Act, cancel this 
agreement whereupon all use and occupation of the Heritage Lands shall 
thenceforth be in accordance with the zoning bylaws of the City and in 
accordance with all other bylaws or regulations of the City or any other laws of 
authority having jurisdiction. 

56



SCHEDULE "A" - Page 6. 
 
 
 
7.0 Breach 
 
7.1 In the event that the Owners is in breach of any term of this Agreement, the City may 

give the Owners notice in writing of the breach and the Owners shall remedy the breach 
within 30 days of receipt of the notice.  In the event that the Owners fails to remedy the 
breach within the time allotted by the notice, the City may by bylaw and after conducting 
a Public Hearing in the manner prescribed by Sections 890 through 894 of the Local 
Government Act cancel this Agreement whereupon all use and occupation of the 
Heritage Lands shall thenceforth be in accordance with the zoning bylaws of the City 
and in accordance with all other bylaws or regulations of the City or any other laws of 
authority having jurisdiction. 

8.0 Amendment 
 
8.1 The parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement may only be amended by one 

of the following means: 
 
 (a) By bylaw with the consent of the parties provided that a Public Hearing shall be 

held if an amendment would permit a change to use or density of use on site or; 
 
 (b) By Heritage Alteration Permit (HAP), issued pursuant to Section 972 of the Local 

Government Act. 
  
9.0 Representations 
 
9.1 It is mutually understood and agreed upon between the parties that the City has made 

no representations, covenants, warranties, promises or agreements expressed or 
implied, other than those expressly contained in this Agreement. 

 
10.0 Statutory Functions 
 
10.1 Except as expressly varied or supplemented herein, this Agreement shall not prejudice 

or affect the rights and powers of the City in the exercise of its statutory functions and 
responsibilities including, but not limited to, the Local Government Act and its rights and 
powers under any enactments, bylaws, order or regulations, all of which, except as 
expressly varied or supplemented herein, are applicable to the Heritage Lands. 

 
11.0 Enurement 
 
11.1 This Agreement enures to the benefit of and is binding upon the parties hereto and their 

respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns. 
 
12.0 Other Documents 
 
12.1 The Owners agree at the request of the City, to execute and deliver or cause to be 

executed and delivered all such further agreements, documents and instruments and to 
do and perform or cause to be done and performed all such acts and things as may be 
required in the opinion of the City to give full effect to the intent of this Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57



SCHEDULE "A" - Page 7. 
 
 
 
13.0 Notices 
 
13.1 Any notice required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall 

either be delivered mailed by registered mail as follows: 
 

(a) To the City: 
  
  City of Kelowna 
  1435 Water Street 
  Kelowna, B.C.  V1Y 1J4 
 
  ATTENTION: City Clerk 
 

(b) To the Owners: 
   
            THE OWNERS OF STRATA LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4 AND 5, KAS3144 
            2124 PANDOSY STREET 
            KELOWNA, BC 
              V1Y 1S6 
 

Or, to such other address to which a party hereto may from time to time advise in writing. 
 
 
 
14.0 No Partnership or Agency 
 
14.1 The parties agree that nothing contained herein creates a relationship between the 

parties of partnership, joint venture or agency. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto on the day 
and year first above written. 
 
 
 
CITY OF KELOWNA 
by its authorized signatories 
 
 
 
(Mayor) 
 
 
 
(City Clerk) 
 
 
 
 
  

58



SCHEDULE "A" - Page 8. 
 
 
 
THE OWNERS OF STRATA LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4 AND 5, KAS3144 
 
 
In the presence of: 
 
 
 
Witness (print name)  Grant Wayne Good (The Owner of 

Strata Lot 1)  
       
 
   
Address 
 
 
 
Occupation 
 
 
 
  
In the presence of: 
 
 
 
Witness (print name)  Marie Hillevi McAlpine (The Owner of 

Strata Lot 2) 
       
 
   
Address 
 
 
 
Occupation 
 
 
 
 
In the presence of: 
 
 
 
Witness (print name)  F. DeVilliers Medical Prof. Corp. (The 

Owner of Strata Lot 3) 
       
 
   
Address 
 
 
 
Occupation 
 
 
  
 

59



SCHEDULE "A" - Page 9. 
 
 
 
In the presence of: 
 
 
 
Witness (print name)  Janette Armstrong (The Owner of Strata 

Lot 4)       
 
   
Address 
 
 
 
Occupation 
 
 
 
 
In the presence of: 
 
 
 
Witness (print name)  F. De Villiers Medical Prof. Corp., 

Inc.No. 101092982 (The Owner of 
Strata Lot 5) 

   
Address 
 
 
 
Occupation 
 
 
 
 
 

60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123


	Agenda
	3.1 TA15-0006 Report C3 Liquor.pdf
	3.1 Attachment TA15-0006.pdf
	3.2 McKay Ave 561 Report OCP15-0009 Z15-0026.pdf
	3.2 McKay Ave 561 Attachments OCP15-0009 Z15-0026.pdf
	3.3 Mugford Rd 310 Report Z15-0017.pdf
	3.3 Mugford Rd 310 Attachments Z15-0017.pdf
	3.4 Mugford Rd 140 Report Z15-0010.pdf
	3.4 Mugford Rd 140 Attachments Z15-0010.pdf
	3.5 Pandosy St 2124 Report HRA15-0001 2015-07-23.pdf
	3.5 Pandosy St 2124 Attachments HRA15-0001(1).pdf

